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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.
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| CODE OF CONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT

International Knitwear Limited being engaged in the Local and export of garments

and providing dyeing facilities is:

- Committed to provide quality products and services to all its local and
international customers.

- Further committed to comply with all applicable Regulatory and
Customers’ requirements, thereby ensuring achievement of customers’
continuous satisfaction.

- An equal opportunity employer which does not differentiate between its
employees on the basis of cast, creed, sex or religious affiliations.

- Always willing, through a liberal training policy, to educate, train and
groom its employees to enhance their professionalism, commitment and
personal growth leading to achievement of greater goals.

Committed to the well-being of its employees by adopting generous welfare
policies and practices.

In return International Knitwear Limited expects from its employees that:

- As representatives of the Company they must at all times behave
appropriately and strictly follow all rules and regulations of the Company.

- They must devote their time, attention, abilities and energy exclusively
for the performance of their duties and must not engage themselves in
any other occupation, business or employment whatsoever without prior
written consent of the Company.

- They must not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the
business of the Company to any person inside or outside the company.

- They must protect all records, reports and other published or
unpublished documents of the Company and promptly hand over all
these to the Company upon leaving, for whatever reason, the
employment of the Company. They must not also remove any or all of the
said records, reports and documents from the premises of the Company
without appropriate authorization.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is here by given that the 32™ Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held on Thursday, October27, 2022 at 15:00p.m. at F2A/L, SITE, Karachi and also
through video link, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and approve the audited financial statements of the
Company together with Directors’and Auditor’'s Reports for the year ended June

30,2022.

2. To declare and approve final cash dividend of PKR 0.75 per share i.e 7.5% as
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended June 30, 2022.

3. Toappoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30,2023.
The present Auditors, M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman,Chartered Accountants,
retire and being eligible,offer themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

;‘?,—ﬂ-ﬂf‘ -I::‘.'\'h-u-n

JAVED KHAN
Company Secretaory

~

Karachi: October 05, 2022

NOTES:

PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM VIA THE VIDEO CONFERENCING FACILITY:

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has advised companies to
modify their usual planning for general meetings in order to ensure safety and well-
being of shareholders and the public at large through Circular No.4 of 2021 dated
February 15,2021 and Circular No.06 of 2021 dated March 03,2021.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Accordingly, the Company will be providing the facility to all shareholders to
participate in Annual General Meeting via video link while ensuring compliance with
the quorum requirements.

The shareholders intending to participate in the AGM via video-link are here by
requested to share the following information with the office of the Company
Secretary at the earliest but not later than 48 hours before the time of the AGM i.e.
before 15:00 p.m. on October 25,2022;

Name of CNIC No. Folio Mobile No.| Email Address
Shareholder No./CDC Acco
untNo.

* Shareholders are requested to provide their relive mobile number and email address
to ensure timely Communication,

M f Communi; n:

The above-mentioned information can be provided through following modes:

1) Mobile/WhatsApp: 0300-8227586
2) Email: javed@internationalknitwear.com

Video link details and login credentials (ZOOM Application) will be shared with those
shareholders who have shown their intent to attend the meeting containing all the
particulars as mentioned above on or before October 25, 2022 by 15:00 p.m.

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books will be closed from October 21, 2022
to October 27,2022 (both days inclusive) to establish the right to attend the Annual General
Meeting and to receive the dividend declared.

ATTENDING AGM AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is
entitled to appointanother member as her/his proxy to attend, speak and vote on
her/his behalf.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

B.

An instrument appointing proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under
which it is signed ora notarized certified copy of the power or authority must be
deposited at the registered office of theCompany at least 48 hours before the time of
the meeting. Form of Proxy is enclosed.

C. €DC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid

down in Circularl dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.
i) For Attending AGM

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and
their registrationdetails are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall produce proof of
her/his identity by showing theirComputerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at the
time of attending the meeting.

b) In case of a corporate entity, a Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with

specimen signatureof the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

For Appointing Proxy

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration
details are uploadedas per CDC regulations shall submit the Proxy Form as per the
above requirement.

b) Attested copies of CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the Proxy Form.

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

MANDATORY INFORMATION - (EMAIL, CNIC, IBAN AND ZAKAT DECLARATION)

A.

In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19
Companies (GeneralProvisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018, members are requested
to immediately provide theirmandatory information such as CNIC number, updated
mailing address, email, contact mobile/telephone number and International Banking
Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of their CNIC to updateour records and
to avoid any non-compliance of the law. Otherwise, all dividends will be with held in
terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.
* For physical shares to M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

* For sharesin CDS  to £DC Investors A/c Services or respective participant
Members are requested to submit a declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat &Ushr Ordinance
1980 for zakat exemption and advise a change in address if any.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS AND BONUS SHARES

Shareholders, who for any reason, could not claim their dividend and/or bonus shares are
advised tocontact our Shares Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited to
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividends and/or bonus shares if any.

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in the case of a public-listed company, any
dividend payable in cash shall only be remitted through electronic mode directly into the
bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account
number(IBAN) and details in the Central Depository System through respective participants.
In case of physicalshares, they are requested to provide bank account details to our Share
Registrar, M/s CDC ShareRegistrar Services Limited. Please ensure an early update of your
particulars to avoid any inconvenience.The e-dividend mandate form is enclosed.

CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO BOOK ENTRY FORM

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 all existing companies are required to convert
theirphysical shares into book-entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the
date of commencement of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised the listed companies to pursue theirsuch members
who still hold shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form.

We here by request all such members of International Industries Limited who are holding
shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form at the earliest. They are
also suggested to contact the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited or any active
member/stock broker of the Pakistan Stock Exchange to open an account in the Central
Depositary System to facilitate the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.

Members are informed that holding shares in book-entry form hasseveral benefits including
but not limited to:

* Secure and convenient custody of shares

* Conveniently tradeable and transferable

* No risk of loss, damage or theft

* No stamp duty on transfer of shares in book-entry form

= Seamless credit of bonus or right shares

We once again strongly advise members of the Company, in their best interest, to convert
their physical shares into book-entry form at the earliest.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ELECTRONIC VOTING

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of
Section 143 -1450f the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of the Companies (Postal
Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

FILER AND NON-FILER STATUS

i) Government of Pakistan, through the Finance Act, 2022 in Section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, has prescribed the following rates for with halding
tax against dividend payments by the companies:

a) For filers of income tax returns — 15%

b) For non-filers of income tax returns — 30%

Members whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided
onthe FBRwebsite, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that
their names are entered into ATL to avoid higher tax deductions against dividends.

i) For any guery/problem/information, the investors may contact the Share Registrar
at the followingphone numbers or email addresses:

M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.5,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi

Customer Support Service Nos: +92-080023275
E-mail: info@cdcsrsl.com

iii) Corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National
Tax Number (NTN)updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate
physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Share
Registrar i.e. M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. Theshareholders while
sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name
and their respective folio number.

CIRCULATION /TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORTS THROUGH ELECTRONIC FORM:
The SEC Pvide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 has provided an option
for shareholders to receive audited financial statements along with notice of Annual
General Meeting electronically through email. Hence, members who are interested in
receiving the annual reports and notice of Annual General Meeting electronically in
future are requested to send their email addresses on the consent form placed on the
Company’s website www.internationalknitwear.com to the Company’s Share Registrar The
Company shall,how ever additionally provide hard copies of the annual report to such
members, on request, free of cost.

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022
have been made available on the Company's website www.internationalknitwear.com in
addition to annual and quarterly financial statements for the prior years.
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| REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

| am pleased to present theannual review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited for
the year ended June 30, 2022,
Review of Overall Performance and Effectiveness of the Board

Economies all over the world are experiencing a commodity super-cycle as a result of the geopolitical situation which
has led to high inflation and low growth in the global as well as domestic markets.

The Company continues to face a challenging business environment in the light of massive currency devaluation and

very high financing & inflation rate. The Board maonitors the whole situation very closely and guides the management
to overcome these challenges.

The members of the Board have rich and vast experience. Committees (of the Board) have provided excellent
support In fulfilling the Board’s mandatary responsibilities including ensuring compliance by the Company with all
legal and regulatory requirements and effectiveness of internal controls. Based on an evaluation, the overall role
performed by the Board and its Committees have been found satisfactory and effective.

STRATEGIC DECISION-MAKING:

Overall corporate strategy and objectives have been set in line with the strategic vision of the Board from which the
annual business plan is derived, as well as, projected plans for the coming years have been set by the Management,
cavering all functional and operational areas by utilization of available resources, modernization, and expansion of
production facilities to ensure continued growth in the bottom line which should hapefully result in improved
results,

DILIGENCE:

The Board reviews the quality and appropriateness of financial statements of the Company, reporting, and
transparency of disclosures, the Company's accounting policies, corporate objective plans, budgets, and other
reports. The meetings of the Board are held at required frequencies and agendas along with working papers are
circulated in sufficient time before Board and Committee meetings.

PRESENTATIONS:

During the course of discussion and approvals of financial statements, comprehensive presentations are placed
before the Board based on incisive, critical, and strategic analysis of all functional areas relating to the core business
of the Company. Benchmarking compared with the industry’s peer group is carried out. This practice provides ample
opportunity for objective analysis of the Company's goals and evaluation of its financial performance with the peer
group. The Board provides appropriate directions and oversight emanated based on thorough and detailed
discussions.

Here, | would like to place on record my sincere appreciation to our members and other stakeholders for their
continued support and trust in the management and the Company.

yd

Karachi WASEEM SHAFI
September 30,2022 Chairman

10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limitedtakes pleasure in presenting this report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Companyfor the year ended June 30, 2022.

Operating Results

2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease}
Rupees Rupees Percentage

Net sales 670,262,761 488,090,150 37.32%

Gross profit 59,741,166 40,362,880 A8.01%

Profit befaore taxation 27,585,414 6,620,308 316.68%

Profit /{loss) after taxation 22,084,733 (50,124) 44,160.71%

MNet Earnings /{loss) per share 2.28 {0.01) 44,160.71%

Financial Performance
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2022 are summarized below:

The Company has achieved Net sales ofRs. 6§70.26 million in the year ended June 30, 2022 as
compared to Rs.488.09millionsame period last year (SPLY). Sales recorded an increase of Rs.
182.17 million (n the current year as compared to sales in the previous year ended 20, Jlune 2021,
Gross profit of the Company was Rs. 59.74 million in the current year as compared to gross profit
of Rs. 40.36 million of the last year. Profit before taxation was27.58million as compared to Rs.
&.62million for the corresponding period last year.

As a result of these factors, Net profit after tax for the year shows Rs.20.08 million as compared to
net loss of Rs.0.05 million SPLY. Earnings per share was Rs.2.28 per share comparing same period
last year 2021: Rs.{0.01)

Business overview

Your Company successfully and smoothly sailed during the year 2021-2022 after demonstrating a
strong resilience against COVID-19 challenges and returned toprofitability. This trend continued for
the whole of the financial year, resulting in better-than expected profitability and the year 2021-
2022 has become a yardstick for our Company. Our results reflected the yield fram investments
made in machinery, inventories, marketingchannels, human capital, and choosing the right options
available in the financial sector.

During the period under review, your Company has Alhamdulilah managed to secure the top line
of Rs. 670.26 million against Rs. 488.09 million for the Same Period Last Year (SPLY), substantially
growing its turnover by 37.32%. Depreciation in PKR against USD also contributed towards
increase in our export sales. Despite of the fact that during this period, there has been a significant
increase in cost of imported raw material owing to devaluation of the rupee, higher international
material cost and challenging supply chain, coupled with shortage of gas supply to the industry,
our timely coverage of raw materials at prices substantially lower than current market rates,the
gross profit margin has increased by Rs.19.38 million from SPLY mainly on account of better
product mix and acceleration in the sale price,accordingly, the Company's net profit increased to a
record-breaking level of Rs. 20.88 million.

Moreover, an increase has also been witnessed in the overall local sales, which has increased by
R$.143.18 million in this period as compared to SPLY,

Further, the inflationary pressure on the economy during the period, has resulted in slight increase
in the administrative expenses in this period as compared to SPLY.

11
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| DIRECTORS' REPORT

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation areRs.2.28 as compared to Re. (0.01) in the last year earnings for
the shareholders.

Other Income

Other income includes dividend income during the year was Rs. 4.06 million against Rs. 2.86
million against the corresponding period last year, an Exchange gain of Rs. 5.20 million against gain
of Rs.0.48 million as compare in the previous year and gain from non-financial assets of Rs.1.24
million against Rs.0.18 million of same period last year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made capital investment of Rs. 26.08 million for expanding
manufacturing capacity, enhancing productivity and improving plant efficiency.

Dividend

Bearing in mind our strategic investment, business need for future working capital requirement
and Company's ability to generate cash, the Board of Directors is pleased to propose a final cash
dividend at PKR 0.75 Per Share i.e. 7.5% for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Communication

The Companyis focused on the importance of communication with the shareholders. The annual,
half yearly and quarterly reports are distributed within the time specified in the Companies Act
2017. The activities of the Company are updated on its website at
www.internationalknitwear.com in a designated section for investors containing relevant
information on timely basis.

Material Changes

No material changes orcommitments affecting the financial position of the Company has occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the report.

Corporate Environment, Health & Social Responsibility

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE)
to ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we
operate.

Our focus remains on improving all aspects of safety especially with regards to the safe,
production, delivery, storage and handling of the materials. The company is committed to
ensuringenvironmental preservation and sustainability.

Materiality Approach

Determining materiality levels is subjective and the methodology varies from one organization to
the other. Authorization for transactions and delegation of powers have been clearly defined and
documented through formalized processes in the Company. The Company has an approved
materiality policy, which is reviewed annually to confirm its relevance.

12
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Summary of key operating and financial data of six years at a glance

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and i

results for the year under review:

ncludes

the financial

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
000"
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and
53,236 35,983 35,942 32,134 25,728 23,704
equipment
Intangible assets - - - - - .
Long-term investments 20,867 16,979 14,478 17,769 42,052 35,183
Long-term deposits 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 1,500 1,500
Short-term investments 17,439 16,781 8,506 4,177 26,228 74,847
Net current assets 67,514 71,626 72,410 70,898 65,192 74,741
Total assets employed 161,108 143,421 133,388 127,030 160,700 209,975
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and
96,750 86,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750
paid-up capital
Reserve and un-
45,218 23,133 28,020 28,763 23,362 4,359
appropriated profit
Gain / (Loss) on
revaluation of 1,945 905 {982) (4,003) 14,360 25,701
investments
Shareholder's equity 143,913 120,788 123,788 121,509 134,473 126,810
Long term and deferred
642 6,693 12,723 2,048 - -
liabilities
Total capital employed 144,555 127,481 136,511 123,557 134,473 126,810
Turnover 670,262 488,090 537,457 451,098 393,230 169,496
Profit before tax 27,585 6,620 16,865 14,748 17,337 3,799
Profit /(loss) after tax 22,084 (50) 7,735 10,237 13,404 2,152
Farnings/{loss) per share 2.28 (0.01) 0.80 1.06 1.39 0.25
Return on turnover 2.2% (0.10%) 1.4% 2.3% 3.4% 1.3%
Return on capital
15.2% (0.049%) 5.6% 8.3% £2.3% 1.0%
employed
Dividend
Cash (%) 7.5% 0% 5% 5% 5% a%
Stock (%) 0% 0% % 0% 0% 0%

13




International Knitwear Limited
| DIRECTORS' REPORT

Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors of your Company are aware of their responsibilities under the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Rule book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.
Your Company has taken all necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance and full
compliance of the Code and we confirm the following:

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes inequity;

« Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

= Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

= Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

= International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed
and explained;

= The system of internal control is sound in design and has heen effectively implemented and
monitored;

= There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern;
« Statement of pattern of shareholding has been included as part of this Annual Re port; and

= Statement of shares held by associated undertakings and related persons have also been
disclosed separately.

Chairman’s Review

The Chairman’s review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance and
effectiveness of the Board, performance of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 and
future prospects. The Directors endarse the contents of the Chairman's review.

Board of Directors and its Committees

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of two Executive and five Mon-Executive Directors. Amongst the Non-
Executive Directors, there are two Independent Directors. The Board also consists of one Female
Director. All the Directors keenly take interest in the proper stewardship of the Company’s affairs.
The Non-Executive Directors are independent of the management of the Company.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging their responsil
with the Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting frameworle,

The Committee consists of three members all of whom are non-executive directors. The
Chairperson of the Committee is an independent director.

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chisf Financial Officer (CFO) attended all the four meetings held
during the year by invitation.

lities in accordance

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee also assists the Board of Directors in discharging
their responsibilities with regard to devising and periodic reviews of human resource policies and
practices within the Company. It also assists the Board in selection, evaluation, compensation and
succession planning of key management personnel.

The Committee consists of three members all of whorn are non-executive directors. The Chairman
of the Committee is an independent director.

14
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| DIRECTORS' REPORT

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

During the vear, four meetings of Board of Directers (BOD), four meetings of Audit Committes (AC)
and one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committes (HRRC) were held. The
attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorship in listed companies, including

international Knitwear Limited, is as follows:
Sr. | Name of Directors Directorship Status | Directars | Members
No AC | HRR | BOD | AC | HRR
. < <
1 | Mr Waseem Shafi 1 No. - - 3/4 |- -
Z | Mr. Nae=m shafl 3 Yes - - arm |- -
2 | Mr Javed Khan 1 - - A |- -
4 | mMr Mohammad 1 No - - 2/4 - 1/1
Shafi
5 | Mr.Mudsssir Habib 1 No. ~ - a/4 | asa | -
i€han
& | Ms.Saleha Majid i No ~ J afa | a/a | iji
7 | Mr. Arshad Ahmed 1 No ~ ~ 2/3 3/2 | -
B | Mr. Muhammad T No - - 1/1 EVEY /1
Sajid Hussain

Management Committee

The Managament Committee comprises of senlor management headad by Chief Executive Officar
{CEOQ). who ensures that a proper system Is developed and implamentad across the Company that
enable swift and appropriate decision-making. It acts in an advisery capacity to CEO at the
operating level, providing recammendatians relating to business and other corporate affairs. It is
responsible for reviewing and farwarding long-term plans, capital and expense budget
development and stewardship of business plans. The Committee is arganized an a functional basis
and meets manthly to review the performance of each funclion against set targets. CEQ alsa
ensures that all decisions and directions given by the Boeard are properly communicated and
implemented.

Evaluation Criteria for the Board

Apart from their mandatory job requiremeants, the performance of the Board of our Company is
evaluated regularly along the following parameters, both at individual and team levels.
Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and philosophical perspectives;

Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active participation of members;

Faollow-up and review of annual targets set by the management;

ity to provide guidance and direction to the Company;

Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s performance requiring action;

Review of succession planning of management;

Ahility to assess and understand the risk exposures of the Campany;

. Contribution and interest in regard to improving health safety and environment, employment
and other policies and practices in the Company; an,

9. Safeguarding the Company against unnecessary litigation and reputational risk.

BNpOAWNE
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| DIRECTORS' REPORT

Performance Evaluation of the Board

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above-mentioned parameters for

the year was satisfactory. A separate report by the Chairman on Board's overall performance, as

required under section 192 of the Campanies Act, 2017 is included in this Annual Report.

Director’s Remuneration

The Board of Directors has approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy. The main features of the

policy are as follows:

= The Company shall not pay remuneration to its noen-executive directors including
independent directors except for meeting fee for attending meetings of Board and its
Committees.

= The Company will reimburse or incur expenses of travelling and accommodation of
Directors in relation to attending meetings of the Board and its Committees.

= The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and approved by the Board of

Directors from time to time.

CEO Performance Review

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited regularly evaluates thePerformance of
the CEO based on the financial and non-financial Key Performance Indicator (KPIs) presented by
him at the start of the year. The board has reviewed the performance of the CEQ for the latest
financial yearand is satisfied with the achievements for the year. The Board has full confidence in
his abilities to manage the company in the most professional and competent manner. He is also
rasponsible for setting the corporate objectives and its alignment with the KPls for his
management team and regularly updates the Board about thePerformance of the management
team in achieving the desired goals.

Rele of Chairman and CEO

Chairman acts as the custodian of the Company on behalf of the Board and stakeholders. He heads
the Board of Directors and is responsible for ensuring the Board’'s effectiveness. The chairman
ensures the development of business and protection of goodwill of the Company. He also ensures
the balance of membership of the Beoard in terms of versatile exposure to various business
operations and achievement of the Company’s vision, mission and its long-term goals, He acts as a
link between the Board and managemeant of the Company and communicates with the Board on
behalf of the management.

The CEQ is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company’s affairs and execution of
long-term strategy, plans and budgets to increase shareholders’ value.CEQ also represents the
Company to shareholders, government authorities and the public. He is the leader and decision
maker who motivates employees, drives change within the Company and takes decisions to
achieve targets.

Vision, Mission and Owverall Corporate Strategy approval by the Board

The beoard of directors has carefully reviewed and approved the vision, mission, and overall
carporate strategy of your Company and believes that it comprehensively states the ideology with
which International Knitwear Limited was incorporated. We ensure that our vision and mission
sets the direction for our over all corporate strategy and our future journey in everything we do at
all levels. The entire organization is connected and driven by this purpose and it serves as the main
decision-making criterion in our day-to-day business.

Pattern of Shareholding

A statement showing pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional information as at
June 30,2022 is included in the report.
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Auditors

The present Auditors M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman CharteredAccountants, retire and
being eligible, have offered them selves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses the
recommendation of the Audit Committee for their reappointmentas auditors of the Company for
the financial yearending June 30, 2023.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
accurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Directors’ Training Program

Twao Directors have attended the Directors Training Program and two have more than 25 years of
experience on the Board of listed companies and therefore are exempt from the Directars Training
Program.During the year, no training was carried out, however the Company has plans to conduct
required trainings of director during the next fiscal year. All Directors are fully canversant with
their duties and responsibilities as Directors of corporate bodies.

Future Outlook

The acceleration of worldwide inflation, as well as a significant increase in freight charges is
making international trade more costly. By making streng efforts to sustain its cost through
maximum capacity utilization, cost rationalization, effective procurement strategy, etc., the
Company is focused to follow its footprint to ensure that maximum wealth can be generated for
the wellbeing of the Company's shareholders. In addition, the sales mix will be altered based on a
demand/supply basis to enhance the profit margins.

Further, to increase the averall performance of the value-added segment, the Company in addition
to increasing its international customer base is also planning further expansion in the value-added
segment which will help the Company to build synergies, rationalizing the operating costs and
consequently having a positive impact on the net margins.

Acknowledgment

The Board of Directors would like to take this opportunity to express its deep appreciation of the
commitment, resilience, courage and dedication of its employees. We would also like to
acknowledge the continued support and cooperation received from our esteemed customers,
suppliers, bankers and shareholders and thank them for reposing confidence in our Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

s 1%

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 30,2022 Director Chief Executive
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International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number ofdirectorsare 7 as per thefollowing:
Male: 6 (Six)

Female: 1 (One)

2. The composition of board is asfollows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr.Waseem Shafi

Mr.Muhammad Shafi
Mr. Mudassir Habib Khan

Independent Directors Ms.Saleha Majid
Mr. Arshad Ahmed
Female Director Ms.Saleha Majid

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed

companies, including this Company.

4. TheCompanyhasprepareda “CodeofConduct”andhasensuredthatappropriatestepshavebeentaken

todisseminateitthroughoutthe Companyalangwithits suppertingpoliciesandprocedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The board is doing a reasonable progress to complete record of
particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended

has beenmaintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by there levant provisions of the Act and

these Regulations,

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and,in his absence,by a direct or
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect ta frequency,recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the

Board.

8. The Board of Directors have a faormal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of

directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

11

12

Two directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempted from directors’ training program. Remaining Director will acquire the
required directors’ training certification within the time specified in the Regulations.

The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations. However, the Chief Financial Officer has also been assigned the
responsibilities of the campany secretary;

The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

Chief Financial Officer and Chief executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Saleha Majid Chairperson (Independent Director)
Arshad Ahmed Member
Mudassir Habib Khan Member

HR and Remuneration Committee

15.

Arshad Ahmed €Chairman (Independent Director)
Muhammad Shafi Member
Saleha Majid Member

. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and

advised to the committee for compliance
The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a) AuditCommittee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2022

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30,
2022

The Board has not yet setup an internal audit function as required by regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Qversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with Internaticnal Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and nen-
dependent children] of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

17. Thestatutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guide lines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

18. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations3, 7, 8,27,32,33 and
36 are below.

V.

The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent Directors required under the
regulation 6 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The requirement to have the representation of number of Independent Directors in the
Company’s board will be complied upon reconstitution of the Board.
The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company secretary.

The Company is struggling for the survival, specially for the few years due the cash flow
JFinancials of the Company does not allow to appeint for separate function of Chief
Financial Officer and company secretary.

The Company will setup the Internal Audit Function and will hire head of Internal Audit as
required by the Regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow zllows to bear an additional cost.

The board has not maintained the complete record of significant policies as required under
the regulations.

A reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek above compliances by the year end of
next accounting year June 30, 2023.

v

WASEEM SHAFI

Karachi: September 30,2022 Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED ™= e
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES o o B
{CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 Pl

T +5221) 334556756,
F492(113665-5077

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of International
Knitwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Qur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directars’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corparate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects,
with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June
30, 2022.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s} of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED Chariered Accounianis
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE} REGULATIONS, 2019

S# Paragraph Description
reference
The Company is non-compliant of the number of Independent
19(1) Directors required under the regulation 6 of the Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the campany

Il 10&1901) | secretary.
The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by

. 15 & 19(11l) regulation 31 of the Listed Companies {(Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.
The board has not maintained the complete record of significant

V. 58&19(V) | policies as required under the regulations.

FLT %MW

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: September 30, 2022

UDIN:CR202210239Qq5H37LV6
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED 47 Pragusaie s, et Road
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements o 73553 Fostan
T ssm 355
s s

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited
(the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at lune 30, 2022,
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss,
thestatement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
staternent of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30,
2022 and of the profit and comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofPakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Following are the key audit matters:

RSM

RS A Hides Lisquat Naum o
risred Accouriants

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our

The Company generates revenue
from sale to export as well as local
customers. We considered
revenue recognition as key audit
matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators and
because of the potential risk that
revenue may not be recorded in
the appropriate period.

S-No- audit
1. | Revenue Our audit procedures included the
(Refer note 22to  the financial | following:
statements) -Obtained an understanding of the

process relating to recegnition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls.

-Performed test of details on a sample
basis with underlying documentations
by inspecting and comparing customer
orders, delivery challans, bill of lading
{in case of export sales), invoices and
other related documents.

-Compared sample of  revenue
transactions recorded around the year
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
ather relevant underlying
documentation to ensure that revenue
pertains to the appropriate accounting
period.

-Ensured the adequacy of disclosures
in accordance with applicable financial
reporting standards and the
Companies Act, 2017_

2. | Stock in trade
(Refer note 3to the financial
statements)

Due to the significance of
inventory balances and related
estimations  involved, this  is
considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the
Tollowing:

-Obtained an  understanding  of
internal controls over purchases and
wvaluation of stock in trade and tested,
on a sample basis, their design,

implementation and operating
effectiveness.
-Attendedphysical inventaory count

performed by the Company.

-Obtained and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and
assessedits accuracy on  a sample
basis.
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-Ensuring that proper provision has
been made for slow moving, cbsolete
and damaged inventory or items
selling below cost.

-Performed NRV test to ensure that
the inventory is valued at lower of cost
and NRV.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.
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The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

-Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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-Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Naveed Abbas.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi.
Date: September 30, 2022

UDIN:AR202210239n8vIk6DgX
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| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30,2022

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Loan and advances

Lang term investments

Current Assets

Stock in trade

Shaort term investments

Trade debts - considered gaod
Loans and advances

Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Note

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
53,236,051 35,983,528
2,052,600 2,052,600
885,665 839,500
20,867,356 16,979,356
77,041,672 55,854,384
126,572,714 123,104,618
17,439,319 16,781,296
144,689,705 47,994,608
10,144,284 10,360,220
9,673,404 26,536,086
25,015,755 22,182,146
5.481,510 577,891
339,016,692 247,536,866

416,058,364 303,391,850

Issued, subscribed & pald-up capital 13 96,750,000 96,750,000

Revenue Reserves

Unappropriated profit 45,218,098 23,133,365
141,968,098 119,883,365

Capital Reserves

Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - FVTOCI 1,345,594 205,089
143,913,692 120,788,454

Non-Current Liabilities

Lease liabilities 14 642,288 1,156,087

Deferred Liabilities - Deferred Taxation Liability/{Asset) 15 - -

MTE salary and wages{Covid-13) liabilities 16 - 5,537,218

642,288 6,693,305

Current Liabilities

Short term finance under mark-up arrangament 17 152,477,501 59,761,396

Current maturity of lease liabilities 12 514,441 477,387

Current maturity of MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) lizbilities 16 4,504,707 10,618,722

Crediters, accrued and other pavables 18 111,162,376 102,783,569

Unclaimed dividend 1,812,391 1,817,933

Current portien of deferred grant 1,030,968 451,084
271,502,384 175,310,091

Contingencies and Commitments 20 - -

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 416,058,364 303,391,850

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an Intagral part of these financial statements,

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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| STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees

Net sales 21 670,262,761 488,090,150
Cost of goods sold 22 (610,521,595} (447,727,268)

Gross profit 59,741,166 40,362,881
Administrative and selling expenses 23 {24,677,539) {22,196,667)

Operating profit 35,063,627 18,166,214
Other income b7] ‘ 9,615,368 | | 6,130,567 |

Unrealized {loss}/gain on revaluation of investments through P&L (636,679) 371,395

8,378,689 6,501,963

44,042,316 24,668,177

Finance cost 25 (14,412,440} (17,657,396}
Other charges 26 (2,044,462) {390,472)]
(16,456,902) (18,047,868)

Profit before taxation 27,585,414 6,620,309
Taxation 19 (5,500,681} (6,670,432}

Profit /{loss) after taxation 22,084,733 50,123]
Earnings/{loss) per share - basic and diluted 28 2.28 {0.01)

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financiol statements.

’ 1%

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman
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| STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 021
Rupees Rupees

Profit /(loss) after taxation for the year 22,084,733 (50,123)
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss.
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or
loss
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments classified as FVTOC -

4 . 1,040,505 185,14
net of tax
Reclassification of OCI component on disposal of FYTOC! investment 2433
directly into equity '

1,040,505 1,887,579

Total comprehensive income for the year 23,125,238 1,837,456

The annexed nates 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

WASEEM SHAFI INAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

———————Resenes———————
~Capital Reserve~  --Revenue Reserve-

Issued, Subseribed Unrealized gain /

ang Paid up Share  (loss) on revaluation of - Unappropriated profit Total
Capital investments
Rupees

Balance as at June 30, 2020 96,750,000 (982,490} 28,020,988 123,788,498
Total comprehensive income:

Net lass far the year ended June 30, 2021 - - {50,123} (50,123)
Reclassification on disposal of FYTOCI directly into equity - 243 . 2433
Fairvalug adjustment on invastment classified as FVTOC! - 1,885,146 - 1,885,145
Transaction with owners:

5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2020 - - {4,837,500) (4,237,500)
Balance as at July 01, 2021 96,750,000 905,089 23,133,365 120,788,454
Total comprehensive income:

Net profit for the year endad June 30, 2022 - - 22,084,733 22,084,733
Reclassification on disposal of FYTOC! directly into equity - 1,040,505 - 1,040,505
Balance as at June 30, 2022 96,750,000 1,945,594 45218 058 143,913,692

The annexed notes 1 1o A0 forn an integral part of these financial starements.

<

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director | CFO
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| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for non cash items:

Depreclation

1Galn}/Loss oh sale of property, plant and equipment
Other incame

Finance cost

Profit befare changes in working capital

Increase in current assets
Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances
Other receivables

Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and ather payables

Financial charges paid

Taxes paid

Cash praceed from Sales tax

Cash praceed from Income tax

Met cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure

Additans in Investment

Disposal of investment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Lease rentals paid

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash praceeds fram short term finance under markup arrangement
Repayment of shorl term finance under markup arrangement
Dividend paid

Met cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these finonciol statements.

R

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

27,585,414 6,620,309
5,564,942 4,698,771
(1,244,000 {177,302)|
(7,734.689) {2,280,791)|
14,412,440 17,657,396
10,998,693 19,898,074
38,584,107 26,518,382
(3,468,006 37,021,469
{96,695,097) (18,574,104)
169,770 16.084,706)|
16,862,682 6,553,139
{83,120,741) 12,915,798
8,378,806 405,593
8,378,806 405,533
{13,621,406) (16,428,429)
(8,334,290] {9,774,868),
6,965,065 13,254,496

- 3,333,051
(51,158,458) 36,223,025
(19,553,613} 5,121,104}
{16,025,711)] (194,743,553)
9,234,929 174,225,313
1,244,000 425,000
(476.745) (438,378)
(25,577,1a0) 125,652,722
268,332,000 172,579,654
(187,390,166} (178,374,053}
(5,542 {4,750,196)|
80,936,293 ,595)
4,200,694 426,708
(4,683,687] 15,110,395}
(482,992) (3,683,687)

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

JAVED KHAN
Director / GFO
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3

34

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Knitwear Li

jted referred as the "Company” or IKL"} is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company Is Plot # F-2/L, SITE,
Karachi, Pakistan.
We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right from hasic 1o highly fashioned garments.
We are engagad In the expart of quality garments. We have established 3 name of credentials awing to the projectad commitments, werking
speed and quality practices, Our operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet thelr specification, and are reliably
delivered ot o reasonable price in domestic and international markets,
BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statementof compliance
These financial statements have baen prepared In accordance with the accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards a5 applicable in Pakistan comprise of ;
- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Prouisions of and directives Issued under the Campanies Ast, 2017
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
direcnives issued under the Companies Act, 2047 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cast convention except as stated atherwise in these financial
statements.

23 Funetional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented In Pakistani Rupees, which |s Company's functianal currency. All the Hnancial information
presented in Pakistani Rupze has been rounded off to nearest Rupze.
24 ciitical i:munhngashmilzsadpdmznls
The pragaration of financial ¥ with Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. It alse r?qu\les the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s

accounting palicies. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgmant ar complexity, ar areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are as follows:

- Cassification of financial instruments; (note 4.2]
B Provisien for impairment; (nate 4.

- valuation of work in pracess; (nate 4,10}

- Provision for ohsalete inventary; (nate 4.11)

- Taxation; inote 414}

Estimatas and judgments are continually evaluated and are basad an historical experiences and other factors, Including expectations
of future events that are belleved ta be reasanable under the circumstances.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERY New tandard: d IFRS i that are affective for the vear ended June 30, 2022
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the yesr ended June 20, 2022, These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact
on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures
Effective from accounting period
beginning on ar after:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 January 01, 2021
[Amendments ta IFRS 5, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, 'IFRS 4 and IFRS 16]

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent il 01, 2021
cancessians extanded beyond luna 30, 2021
2.2 standards and that are nat yet effective

The fallowing standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date
mentianed against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either nat relevant 1o the Company's

operations or are nat expected ta have significant impact on the Company's financial statemants other than certain additional
disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Effactive from accounting period
beginning on or afeer:

AMENdMants 1o IFRS 3 'BUsiNess Combinanons January 01, 2022
- Reference to the coneepiual framework
Amendments 1o 145 16 'Property, Plant ar
-Proceads before Intended use
Amendments ta I1AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabl
- Gneraus Cantracts — cost of fulfilling = cantract
Annual Improvements Lo IFRS Standards 2012-2020 Eyele January 1, 2022
(related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1A5 41

oIS 1| Financial ' January 01, 2023
- Classification of lishi

Eaquipment’ January 01, 2022

es and Contingent Assets' January 01, 2622

s te 1AS 1
- Disclosura of accaunting palicias

January 01, 2023

Amendments ta 1A & 'Accaunting Policies, Changes in Accounting January 01, 2023
Estimates and Errors' - Definilion of Sccounting estimates
Amendmants to IAS 12 Income Taxes' - datarrad tax related to January 01, 2023

assets and lisbilifies arising from o single transacnan.
Amendments ta IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Beferred indefinitely
Assets between an Investor and its Assoelate or Joint Venture

Othar than the aferesald standards, Intarpratatians and amendmants, tha 1AS8 has alsa lssuad the fallawing standards which have nat
heen adopted locally by the SECP;

- IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of Internationsl Financial Reparting Standards

- IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts”

SUPMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accaunting palicies are con:

tently applicd in the preparation of these nandal statements are the sama s thase spplied in

aarller periads presented.

a1

a2

Government Grant (1AS 20]

Grants are not recopnized UNT there is fessanable sssUrshcs that the Company W
that the grant will be received.

The benafit of a lang-tarm finance at @ balow markst rate of Interest |s ireated as a defarred grant, measured as the differance
Detwesn proceeds received and the fair value of the [oan based on prevailing market interest rates,

Grants related to long-term finances sre recognized in profit or lass on o systematic basis sver the periads in which the Company

oty With the conditions atteching to them and

rocagnizas 2 finance cost related ta lang-tarm financos at market rata af Interast
Financial Instruments

Initial meazurement of financial asset

The Company dassifies its financial assets into following three categonies:

- fair value through ather comprehensive incame (FVOCN:

- fair Value troLzh BrofE of 355 (FVTPL; 3ha

- measured at amorfised cost.

A financial asset is inifially measured ot fair value plus, far an item not at FYTPL, ransaction casts that are directly attyibutable ta its scquishion,
Subsequant mersurement

licias apnty ta tha af financial assata:

Financial nssets at FUTPL These sxsets are subsequently measured ot fair valus. Net gains and losses, including sry
interest / markup or dividand income, are recognised in incame statement

Financial assats at Thass assets are subsequantly measured i amertised cost using the efioctive Intarest

amortised cost methad. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses (see i) below). Interest ¢
markup ineame, foreign cxchange gains and lasses and impairment are recognized in income
statomant

Debt investments at FVGLI These assets are subseduently measured ot fait valus. Intersst / markup income calculsted

using the effective interese method, foreign exchange gains and lozses and Impalrment are
recagnised In inceme statemant. Othar nat galnz and lasses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognitian, gains and losses accumulated in OC1 are reclassified to Income statement
Eauity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as incame in
Fyoc income statement unless the dividend clearly represents 2 recavery of part of the cost of the
Investmant. Gther net gains and lasses are racagnised In OCI and are nevar raclassifiod ta
Income statement
Derecagnition of Financial Assets
Financial assets are deracognisad when the nghts to receive cash flaws from the assets have axpired or have bean transfarrad and the
Carmpany has ransferred
Non-derivative financial assets
Al nan-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date ie. date an which the Company becomes party te the
respective contractual provisions. Non-derivatiue financial 3ssets comprise loans and recelvables that are finandal 35591 with fived or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes long term loans, accruals, prepayments, advances and
ather receivables and cazh and cash equivalent, The Company derscopnises the financial assets when the contractus) fights to the
cash flavis from the aszet expires or It transfers the rights 1o receie the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the finandal assets are transferred or it neither ransiers nar retain substanbally all of the
S BNd rewards of SWnership and does HoT FALATN CONTra] Cuar Th Lransfarred assat.
35
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43 Regular way contracts
Al purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market convention such
a5 T42" purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or
sell the assets

44 Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recagnises lass allawances for Expectad Cradit Lasses (ECLs) In respact of financial assets measured at amortised cast.

The Company measures loss allowances 3t an amount equal to lifeime ECLS, excent for other securities and bank balances which are
measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short term In nature, therefore no credit lass Is expected on
these balances.

Non-financial assets

The carrying ameunts of the Company's nan-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is

any indication of impalrment. If such indicatian exists, the asset's recoverable amaunt, being higher of value in use and fair value less

is estimated, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using = pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of Impairment testing, assets that cannot be testad Individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflaws fram continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflaws of other assets or graups of assets. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds ils recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

45 Financial liabilities

Financial liabil

s are initlally recognised on trade date i.e. date an which the company hecomes party to the respective contractual
provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings znd trade and ather payables. The Company derecognises the
financial ies when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire, Financial liability other than at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these liabilities are measured at amartised cost using effective interest rate methad.

4.6 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the financial statements only when the Company
has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company Intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle
the liabilities simultaneausly. Income and expense itams of such assets and liahilities are alsa offset and the net amount is reported in
the financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

4.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation Is chargad, from the month when the asset is avallabls for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, o profit and
loss account applying the straight-line methed.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when Incurred. Major renewals and Improvements are
capitalized and the assets sa replaced, if any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipmant are taken to prafit and lass account in the year of disposal

48  Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on property,
plant and equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and
equipment as and when the assets start aperatian.

4.9 Right-of use assets
Right of Use assets are inifially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct casts, any lease payments
made at o before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives receivad. These are subssquently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the sharter of the lease term or the useful lite of the asset, Where the ownership of
the assel transfers Lo the Company at the end of the lease term or If the cost of the zsset reflects that the Company will exercise the
purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset
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Leases
A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of 2n identified asset for a period af time in
exchange for cansideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lsase commencement date, The right-of-
tially measured at cost, and ly at cost less any depreciation and impairment losses if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the leasa liability. The right-of-usa asset is depraciated using the straight line mathad over the
sharter of the lease term and the asset's useful life . The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis as that for
owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periadically reduced by impairment losses, if any.
The lease liability is initially measured 3t the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the intarest rate implicit in the laase or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the antity's incremental barrowing
rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the |ease liability and decreased by lease payments made, It is
re-measured when there is a change n future lease payments arising fram a change in an Index or rate, a change In assessment of
whether extension aption i reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
Liabilities In respect of short term and low value leases are not recognised and payments against such leases are recognised as
expense in protit or loss.
Stock-in-Trade

(a)  Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cast calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net realizable

value
(b} Workin pracess is valued at material cost plus estmated conversion cost.
(c)  Finished gaods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRY signifies the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale

(dp icineb is valued at cast ising invaica value plus other charges incurrad thersan.
Staff Retirement Benefits
The Company operates an approved defined contributary orovident fund scheme for eligible emplovees. Equal contributions are
made 1o the fund by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 % of hasic salary
Compensated Absences
Tha Company has a pal

use asset is i

to provide for compensated absences for all emplayees in accordance with the rules of the Company.

Taxatian

Current

Provision far current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime, of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime,

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided g the bal; h iability , providing for porary di between the carrying amounts of
assets and llabilittes for financlal reporting purpaces and the amounts used far taxation purposes. The amaunt of deferred tax
provided is based an the expected manner of realization or sattlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted at the balance sheet date, However due to application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation would not arise.
Borrewing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense n the period in which they are incurred, except Lo the extent that they are directh
attributable to the constructian of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the zast of that particular asset
Pravisions

jions ate recognized when the Company has a present legal of constructive obligation as 3 result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resources embocying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made,
Fareign Currencies Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Wonetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies ac at the balance sheet date are sxpressed in rupses at rates of exchange
prewailing on that date. Mon manatary items that are measured in tarms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are induded in incame currently.

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue fram sale of goods is recognised when the Company satisfies a perfarmance obligation by transferring promised goods to
customer. Goods are transferred when the customer obtains thelr control [i.e. on dispatch of goods to customers). Revenue is
recognised at transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration),

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basks on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

- Galns / {losses) arising on disposal of investments are recognised on the date when the transaction takes place.

Prowi
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Balances from contract with customers

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred te the customer. The Company recognizes a
Trade receivables

A receivable represants the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade recaivables are carried at
original Involce amount less expected cradit oss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written
off when identified.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer gaods ar services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
fram the customer. & cantract llability Is recognized 2t sarlisr of when the payment is made of the paymant is dus if a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential
decreases in the value of tha returned gonds. The Company updates the measurement of the assat racorded for any revisions to its
expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases In the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liahility is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received {or receivable) from the customer and is
measured at the amaunt the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates,
of refund liabilities {and the corresponding change in the transaction price] at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance facilities
avalled by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpase of statement of cash flow.

Related Party Transactions

Al transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are canducted at arm’s length at normal commercial
rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare
circumstances, where subject ta the approval of the Board of Directars, it is in the interest of the Company ta do so.

Segments Reporting

Identification of segments.

Export division

Local division

Basis for allocation for revenue and expenses:

Rewenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable, Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges,
embroidery charges, stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, freight ectroi and cartrage expenses are allocated on actual
basis. Hawever, depreciation and all ather general expenses are allocated on the following basls,

Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local

Depreciation on all assets 41.36% 58.64%
Earnings per share

The Compary presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of erdinary shares outstanding during the period.
Dividend and other appropriations.

dend to the shareholdars is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period
in which these are approved by the Board of Directors,
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INVESTMENTS

At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)
Equity securities - listed

At fair value through prafit or loss [FUTPL]
Equity securities - listed
Mutuzl funds - isted

7.1 FVTOCI - Equity Securities

Number of Shares
2022 2021

767 580 The Searle Company Ltd.

26,500 21,000 Engro Fertilizer Limited,

1,000 - Engro Corparation Ltd.

40,500 39,000 Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.

14,500 - The Hub Pawer Company Limited
864 - Millat Tractors Limited

7.2 FVTPL- Equity securities.

Number of Shares.
2012 2021

31,565 20410 The Searle Company Ltd,

2,000 2,000 Attock Petroleum Limited
12,500 - Engro Palymer & Chemical

6,400 5,100 Pakistan Qilficlds Ltd.
33500 24,000 EngroFertilizer Limited.
14,900 10,000 Pakistan State Qil Ce. Ltd.

- 3,000 Senice Global Footwesr Limited

13,500 6,000 The Hub Pavier Company Limitad

112,000 Jahangir Siddiqui And Co. Ltd
- 5,500 TRG Pakistan Limited

7.2.1 FVTPL- Mutual Funds

Number of Units
2022 2021
9,759 9,061 AKD Islamic Fund
27,887 6,950 UBL Liguidity Plus Fund

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
71 20,867 356 16,978,356
72 14,126,546 15,624,645
221 3,312,773 1,156,651

38,306,675 33,760,652

83618 143,145
2,348,950 1475670
257,090 -
16,435,305 15,360,540
988,465
753,918 -
20,867,356 16,973,356
3441216 4351874
642,620 542,060
995,375 -
2,597,184 2,008,686
2,968,440 1,686,480
2,560,416 2,242,500
- 173,480
920,205 478,000
- 2,526,720
914,815

14,126, 15,624,645

493,745 454,908
2,818,028 701,743
3312773 1,156,651
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STQCK IN TRADE
Raw material
Wark-in-pracess
Finished goods

Finished goads

Finisned stack
Finished stack in transit
Serap / Left over stock

2022

Nate Rupees
12,487,441
29,503,116

a1 14,872,157

328,572,714

,831,332

The finished goods includes lefe cver stock of As 5.04 (M (2021: 8 64 M) recorded at HAV.

TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD
Forelgn - secured, considered gond
Gain Aless) on Translation of export debtors.

Lacal - unzacurad
Cansidered goad
- Considared doubtful

Less: Provision for bad debts

8.1 Provision far doubtul trade dabts
Opening pravisien
Pravizion for tha year
Reversal of pravision

2021
Rupees
26,057,504
76,022,003
21,025,021
133,104,8:

12,376,546
5,648,475
31,026,031

71,489,270
185,674)|

12,503,283
105,152

71,303,598 3008465
72386108 EEETTREE
533,270 1161162
73,608,375 36147305
0.1 (533,270 (1,161,162
51 44,688,705 47,834,608
161,162 1,211,182
523.270 ERTTRTE)

As at June 20, 2022, trade receivables of Rs 0.10 millian (2021; Rs Nil ) were past due but not impaired. These relate

to a number of independant customers for whom there Is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these

trade recaivables is as follows
9.3 Ago analysis of trado dobts Is as fallows:
Mot yet due
Past duse
- Upta 1 manth
- 1tasmanths
- Mers than & manths

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Laan to amployess - Long tarm pormion - unzecurad, considerad gaod

Laan ta emplayees
Less: current portion of lnan to smployees

Short term Advances - unsecured, considered gasd
Advanca to contractor and supshiar

Current partian of advances to amplayeas

Shart term depasits(BAH against LE)

144,589,265 47,594,608

85,007 -
649 -

344,688,705 47,984,608

10.1 1,845,165 1,577,165

(1,055,500) (737,665

BES,565 833,500

1,311,258 5,622,555

1,058,500 737,865
3.973.830 -

10142384 90,360,330

101 The unsecured loans ta employees are granted in sccordance with the terms of smployment. Losns are recoverable in manthly

instalments ower a o
Bertaing to o period between 1- 3 years.

Tranaactions:
Aduance ta CEO

Gpaning balance

Paid adsance during the year

Refund advance during the year
Transactions:
Advance ta CFO

©pening balance

Paid adsance during the year

Refund advance during the year

= on June 20,2023

il ranging between § ta 5 yesrs and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at june 30, 2022

180,000

140,000

102  Company loan made to CFG last year to meet Educational expenses of his child which are subsequently received in instalments

The clasing balance = Rs 0.14 mi




International Knirwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

QTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tay vefundable

EXQ0rt eate receivables

Research and development raceiable
Other receimbie.

111 The Campany has recorded the provision anly 25 on 100% sales during the current year.

CASH AND BANK BALAMCES

Cash in hand
With banks i
« Treasures call accounts (deposit accounts)
- Current accounts

Security deposit

121 Deposit accounts carry profit of §5%-10 75 per annum (2021 55% per annum]

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
Number of Shares
2022 2021

Issued, subseribed and paid.up share eapital

20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Ris. 10/ each

Number of Shares
2022 2021
3,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Ks, 10/ each fully pald n cash
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shrares of Ra. 10/- each issued 23 borus shares
6,450,000 6.450,000 Right shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid in cesh
9,675,000 9,675,000

20m
Nate Rupees

5,974,154

100,000

121 6,789,175,
92335

881510
61 1,500,0001
5,481,510

2021
Rupees

7,046,103

100,000

31,302
25,989
77,851

(1,500,000}
577,891

20,600,600
2,250,000
&

The Company has ane class of ardinary shares whieh earries na right T fixed income. The holders are entitled 1o receive lvidends as deelared fram tme ta tme and
are entitled to one vote per share at campany. All Share rank egual with regards to the company’s resicual assets,

LEASE LIABILITIES

Up to one year 512,441 7,387
Later than one year and not later than five vears 641288 1,156,087
La56,729 1633474
Juna 2022 June 2021
Mininmum P | Presentvalus of Present Value of
Lease tt ‘H Minimum Lease . ""m Financial Charges. Winimum Lease
Paymants & Payment e Paymant
Hotlater than one vear 585,068 027 514441 582 335 104338 amam
Later than ane year but not later
than five years 650,184 7,896 641,288 1,329,851 173,884 1,156,087
1,235,652 78,923 1,156,729 1,312,276 278,802 1,633 474

144 The above represents fvance lease enterad into with Bank Al-Habib for lease of mator wehicle, The liability under the agreement is payable by August 20,
2023 in manthly instalments and is subject to 12 Month KIBOR+2.5% .
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- Deferred 3022 2021
eferred tax iability arising in respect of: Nate Rupees Rupees
Accelerated 1ay depreciatian 857414 289,851
Right Lo Use assel 126,020 191,359
Unrealized gain on investments 60,574 65,601

Deferred tax assets arising in respect of:

Provision for doubtful debts (335,737)
Liability against asset subjeet to finance lease (201,271 1239,773)
Carry forward tumaver tax (4228371

12, 2
2.815,483] (4,805,880

(1,671,074) (3,658,950}
Hot recorded due to prudence 151 _ 1EMNAM _ 36Sag60

During the 251 vear the amount of deferred Lax asset astimated by the company i< Rs. 3.658 M the campany has recorded deferred 1ax 35381 ta the extent of [bilty
charged In the current year and not recerded further deferred tax asset on prudence basks.

ITF salary and wages(Cavid-19) liabilities

MATF salary and wages(Covid-19) 151 5,535,675 16,607,080
MTF salary and wages{Covid-19]
Up tes sne year 4,504,707 10,618,722
Later than sne vear and not later then five years 18

504,707

Deferred Grant

Un o o year 1,030,968

Later than sie year and not Liter then five years -
30,568

161 Limit Rs. 22.14 million.
The Finance against wages and selaries to worker and employees for the month of April, May and June 2020 under the SB# rafinanca scheme , Concarns
anneungesd vide HESMEFD Circular NO, 6 dated 10th April 2020. The Cormpany will pay a quarterly mark up at a discounted rate of 3% per annum, with
elght equal quarterly instalments starting fram lanuary 2021 The laan Is seeured by way of equitable mortgage over fatary property of the Company.
Szcured against hypathacation charge over stock is. 20032 million (2021: 100 M), ecuitable Mortgage Charge of Rs, 324,52 milllon aver Factary at Plot Mo,
P-24/L SITE, Karachi, Measuring 1,885 Acres in the name of International Knit Wear, having Market Value of Rs. 200,32 Mn & 5% Rs, 160 26 Mn, Valuation
Conducted by Pakistan Inspection Ca P, limited ectors for R, 400 millian each

3

Short tarm financa undar mark-up arrangamant

Runing finance facility 7.1 5,364,501
Euport refnance facllity 172 55,000,000
Short term finance - lacal sales 12.3
Finance against Foreign documentary bills 174
Finance agains local documentary bills 7.5

171 Running finance facility
Sacured against ypathecatian charge over stacks and equitsble mortgage over factary property at Flot o F-2AJL, SITE, Karachi sounting to Ri.200.23
million (2022: Rs. 20032 million) {with S5% margin], and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of Directars of the Company. The rate of
rark-up s £qUzl 10.3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2021 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a), The facility is renewabde and is vlid Bl June 30, 2022
The faclity for running finance 4 4% June 30, 2022 smounts to Ra. 6 niillian (2021; Rs, 6 millian} of which smount remaining unutilized at the year end was
Rs. 35 thousand. {2021 : Rs. 738 thousands)

122 Export refinance facility

Szcured sgainst hypothecation charge over stocks and equiteble mortgage ver factory property st Plot # F-28/L, SITE, Karachi smounting to Rs 200,32
million {2021: Rs, 20032 millien] {with 5% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of directors of the Company. The fate of
mark-up is equel 1o 3 months’ KIBOR + L0% pa (2021: 3 Manths KIBOR + 1.0% pua). The facllity s renewable snd 1s valld (] 1une 30, 2022.
The facllity for export refinance as at June 30, 2022 ameunts to Rs. 75.5 milllon {2021: Re. 65 million) of which amount remaining unutized 2t the year and
was fs. 16.5 milian. {Rs, 15,5 million)

173 Shortterm finance - local sales
The Finance sgainst Inugice of KHAADI {80% of inuoice amaunt] The rate of mark-up is equal ta 3 Months KIBOR + 25% p.a (2021: 3 Manths KIBDR + 2 5%
). The Facilivy is renswable and is valld ol June 30, 2022,
The faclity for Short term finance - lacal sales as at June 30, 2022 amaunts to As. & millan {2021: § million] of which amounts remaining unutilized at the
year end was Mil, {2021 - Hil)
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174 Finance against Forelgn documentary bills
This facility is provided to negotiate {purchese] Foreign Documentary bills/documents submitted by the company on export made against export L/C
denominated in Foreign Currency. The rate of mark-up 3 Manth KIOR + 2.5 % p.a (2021: 3 Manth KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a]. The facilty 's renewable and valid tll
June 30, 2022,
The facllity for Short tarm finance - local sales 35 at June 30, 2022 amaunts to Rs, 85 million (2021 85 millen] of which amounts remaining urutilzed at the
year end was ks, 48 millon . (2021 185 million)

175  Finance against lacal documentary bills

This faclity s provided to negatiate {purchase] local Documentary billsfotuments subiritted by the campany on local sales made againet local L/, The
rate of mark-up 3 Month KIEOR + 2.5 % p.a {2021  Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.al. The facility is renewable and valid il une 30, 2022

The facility for Short term finance - local sales as at June 30, 2022 ameunts to Rs. 102.5 millign (2021: 102.5 million) of which amgunts remaining unytilized
at the year end was Rs. 2.9 million . (2021 : 1025 millien]

176 Letter of credit sight

This finance against impart of packing and raw materials, Payment is made by the bank upon verificztion of documents.
This facility for impart s 2t June 30, 2022 amounts ta 2 millian. (2021: 2 milian] of which the amount remzining unutilised zt the year the end was Nl

(2024 Nilp
2022 2021

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupess Rupees
Creditors 50383278 86,132,412
hzcrued expenses 12815221 9,223,261
Campensated absences payable 1,271,959 1,152,500
Qther fund pavable 181 408,050 383,566
Workers' profit particination fund 182 1,481,494 -
Workers' welfare fund 3,398,893 2,835,025
Cantract fiability 425,449 1,986,705
Aduance from others 240,000

Others 629,180

181 Otherfund payable
Provident fund 305,690 368,602
£OBI payable

182 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance
Pravision for the yeor
1,481,434 905,758
Less: Payments made during the year - 1905,758)
TAXATION
Advance tax

Less: Provision for tax.

Prios year 155,281]
16,670,477
0 22,182,146
191 b Lo o profit
teson the aversge tax 1d sppliczble tax rate his nat been preserted in these financis! statements as the total incorme
of the Company atiracts minimum tax under section 113 of the Incame Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its export sales fall under finzl tax regime.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commitments

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2022 smourtted to Rs. 30,576,780 (2021 Rs, 11,872,715},
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20 NETSAES ENPORT I LOTAL 11 TOTAL
T2 T | ww [ wm | wm FoTy
et £
Exporr msowess 236l - 278,020:855 B339, 50
Sales local 211 - - 33,172 651 249,890,924 383,122,661 243,890,524
Sales discount 1556501 22413441 {s5.128] 612,630 @an1,3u)
Expart rehates 211836 3,14636 2,640,488
Eiport D - - 673,432
RAD/ Rebate Commission [1428,781) 1,418,701) (548,334
277,195,008 159726 s s 670262761 468,090,150
21 Sales loest
Locsl - - aLu8Ms meTEE 52128905 2839750
Others 2121 . . 4
N N W80,154 187 782,278,860 60,154,167 62,274,880
Sales ke Loeal - - 65,653,049 41,001,084 65,643,349 41,001,094
Sales tar othess - - 1,337,537 1,382,847 1,227,537 1382802
ST 4185 67,031,388
—AMARRRLPANAIGHIE _ AR3IDAEL RAOM90900,
2044 thers inclse scrap sales amoaning 1o R, 2,570,619, [2030: s, ball

SMEORT I 10CAL 10 I0Tal
Tm ] TR ] T T03T 1

22 COSTOF GOODS SOD

Rawand packing material consumad

Opening stock L6 13,340,888 1150081 26057594 29,613,718
Purchases 137,979,706 04,361,927 195,657,548 01541 e 193,39%466
Cloring stnck [5.044.398) 12.716,705] {TASB0AN) (13360838 (12,197,041 26,057,584]
15 552,015 90,471,126 LA, 153 7,475,467 340,477,209 196,951,573
Salaries, allgwances and banafts Ermre 0,725,288 EREs 775,008 54,180,707 YT
Prenident fune contribution 01,189 1624697 1,568,532
nitting chasges 2526784 3,765.445 4835346
Dipeing and ather charges 26.462.905 64312553 55,596,060
Erilroiléry 4 PrinTeng chavges 5362671 2261805 19,496,673
Stitehing charges 32,007.848 7,268,483 62,518,336
Fus! and powsr 2,848,986 7815274 5564675
Commumication 1A 28250 334,806
Bastig & lelegranms 27330 22100 484,260
Pegaits and mamtenance 115434 163258 2331817
Staft wekfare and medieal cxpenies 1130 2320 236,580
Wotox vehicle an conveyance 208,913 2,492,476 1,951,089
Irsurance e 538,855 55362
Degretiaton 757,238 1310365 2,996.455 2559421
Gearing 2nd forwinding - 3455018 3480,346
Freight, oezroi and cartage 2878120 3934108 5078321 7688150
Export denelopovent charzes. 74036 423,948
Factory compliance expenses 266,552 228,069 625,008 48,201
Corminision on Sales Lxfincams Tax refund 737586 205832 I 352,705 L5136
Travelag emenses - B64,556 - 1414250 -
Inspectian fees. 643,778 535,557 575378 15,591 1313156
Otters B3 Ess 111,07 533 21,578

108,058,081 161828, 750

063!

117,308,232
Wark--process.

Opening seock FErEET) AT 518 A% 211 3
osing stond w1sozoe]  (37.100,487| (s8352,408]|  (36,321.516) (93,503,115 (76,023,013)
(=] 16,246,528 (54088 (0A6EA0N (23481,113) (28,713,230)
costof oods manutactured 260,025,439 198,288,129 I 186750465 604,368,731 364,545,595
Finished goods
Opaning siock 015004 0,545,238 10768327 31557457 21,328,021 4,203 535
Clesing stak Iosossol 1026065 71508 (0754329 (14,872,157) 21,025,021)
4,130,135 50,385, 641 1043728 227955 /152855 63,178,574
COST OF GOODS 501 TAESTE 36T SUE3RE02 200053355 51053155 753,268
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23 ADMIKESTRATIVE AND SELUNG EXPENSES

EXPORT L0cAL 1 TOTAL
Note. EEH) 201 20 ] 072 01
Salaniss ol owancas and bensits 651685 Tam07 8374282 7,480,269 15,985,121 14610,5%
Frasicent fund cantrbsian 285,242 220,284 08478 2005 689,721 656,269
Communication ;097 20,047 .91 23108 w5350 51305
Postage i elegrams 1718 4228 3854 2404 6572 8660
staffwelfars and medical sepences 51 353,040 9731 370368 677,600 23408
Mator vehicle ani conveyance 500,728 44302 L0056 518508 1210798 101300
Repalr and malnlenance 301 74591 EE 78252 115350 152843
Legal and professions | <harges 16,848 285,708 308 395,77 475988 SES513
Auditors remuneration 24 Er 183318 284212 202807 501,685 396125
Depreciaion 512 1062128 104,052 1,506,258 1,085,288 2,568,437 1139350
Feinting and stationery 92,188 nm 130,739 6,277 183,018
Asuertisement and publeity am 59617 86,725 250 2161
Fee, subseriprion and periodicals 1278 313,988 339,880 63470
Ren, rate and tares - 5,121 s798 - 87
Insurance 62112 240 88,077 L] 150,189 133,127
otfers 133282 188,987 g8 327 pETRT:S
16,105,632 1032464 141437 1135418 BETIESS 72196467
o2 21
21 Asditons Remuneration Ruipres Rupees
Annus audt 206250 187,500
Half yearly rewem 84,000 o0
Ot of ket expemses 05,000 6875
Sales tavon udit and review 2 080 26,750
P e LN H
4. OTHER INCOME EXPORT LOCAL U TOTAL
3022 2031 20 ] 012 201
Rupees
Incoma From Finandial Acsats
Fraft on bank accourts 108428 80845 155,17 1513 64,601 165,558
Dhidend Intame 21 1,650,516 1307425 23834% 145,016 4088242 2863481
Exchange gzin- nat 5207835 484,163 - 5200825 48,193
Geantinga nasaes 599,780 64593 25208 21,080,368 1238367
Gainfnse] on dlisposal o inestment - net 2z {10en3s5) 13,314 (1,553,282) 538510 (2618,585] 105,824
Reversal of pravision against doubrful debts s <o P so000
Gain o traneatian of fareig eurrency debtors e . . e .
Incoms Fram Nk Financial Masets
gain{Lass) an disgesal ofprogerty, plant and
Equpment ns s 077

2,857,355
241 Dividend income

FUTOO {shares held at reporting date)

FUTDE {shares disposed during the period]

FUTRL

242 {Lassh/gsin on disposal of meestment

AL
T2.648,5%8) 1051824

FTac

~unted serurlties - 243
2,648,586 1,054,257
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25, FINANCE COST EXPOAT || LDCAL 10 TOTAL
2021 2021 1 1022 2021 11 2022
Tupees

Markeisg on vport refinans 11,560 1075857 1155066 1963631 220,840
Markcam on running finarer. e 25647 264007 71,865 526,568
Markc-ug) on MITF slry and wages (Coviel-19] 568,250 826026 405,201 1374061 1897505

e charge: 434851 1200370 2,004,602 1,259,288 3,468,084 243888
Mark-ug o bl ageinst ssset subject ta finanes
lease w77 75,108 a2 e 108,158 54,086
Exchange {loas) et - - - - - .
Backersze and other charges 2047 25853 ErS) 27122 5,727 52,97
Capital Gain Tax. - (35,675} 126,335 152,608
Gither markup - - ETAM 1041637 5763454 10416574
EETERITS 353375 138900 TAITE0 EETEYIT] FETES
26 OTHER CHARGES.
Warkers'profit partidation find 611680 - 69300 - 1481084 -
Warkars' waars fund e 1,559 30,46 199513 562,968 90472
w5513 0,55 1,398,550 185513 LoHAE 0,471
22, SEGIMENT INFORMATIGN
e I8 engaed in business scthities fom which the Cs s vasuls e requlaly reviemed
by the Company’s < to make decsion tbe sefment and ssess 1 perarmance. Further, discrete fivancal mfarnanon s avalable
each segm
Based en o pracucts produced on sold, the
- Bwen
Lo
' the piracse of making o be acates and of
Sagment ravenia and segmant rasult for the yaar are as fallows:
EXPOAT 1 LOCAL [ TOTAL
202 0 1l 022 I o | 2023 2001
Net Sales 27ge5200 238,195.226 IBOETSE2 248850820 70262761 488,090,150
Castof gands sekd (61135575 QIAETIATH  (4S3SROM] (080533961 (610521585 (842,727,268
Grass profit 547} as581531 i EXTTTS 40,362,541
Administrathue and sellng eupenses (10,832,484) (LATLET) (10368 18Y) (24,677,539) (22,196,667)
Sogmant resalts [FEETEEE) 32,208,685 AT 15063,627 8366,210
Giher nzame. FERE) 297,388 245915 2,615,269 6230567
Unrealized gain } Qo] on revsluamon of inestments (53 308) 104 a7 108 . 71,398
sld fou trading
Financa sost (3,162,228 (2,533,788) HLMEI (4105600 118,412,003 (27,657,396]
Cther chrges (345,512} [190.553) (1.395.950) 15313 (2.044462) (30,4721
Profit batora taxation from contnuing ogaration S236 578.97) 2234553 16,199,285 55415 620509
Taxstion
-+ Current (z‘m‘mj‘ 236,716} [‘.bﬂw‘l 17| | 7,993,083 18,518,551
- e rema 1451540 a7 2432403 {355,891
5,505 536) BAIL730) 5.225 506 5T (5.500.682] (6670,22]
Proft afler taxation from cantinuing operation TN 13,591,765 a5 FEETTYIH) Z08173 2]
a0z 201

25 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees Rupees
Farmings/lioss| per share - basic ond diuted
Prafit afer taxation 22,084,723 02
Nuniber of cedinary shares 9575003 675,000

Eamigs por share.
29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Caah snel bank Ealances 1 54 S8
Fanning finanee fadlity 171 5,954,501 (5,261,500
{@83,352) {463,585
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30.  REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES.

The aggregate amount charged in the aceaunts for , ncluding. i e . Direetor and Evecutives of the Company are as follows:
2022 021
Directars Chief Exseutive || Execubives Directars Chief Exseutive | Executives.
upeas -

Basicsalary 1354839 3E0EE 1548387 1,161,230 -
Aowanges. 45161 119032 BSLEN 638710 -
Compaay's eantibution te. provident fund 112,908 aonE 90 56,174 -
Megics! espenses t1290 L34 6117 270 -
Bonus. 112,503 322,581 129,032 GETT4 -

Number of persans] 1 1 1 1 1 o

30.0 A sum of Rs, 184,000 {2021; Rs. 168,000) was paid being fee for sttending the Board of Directors” meating.

202 Chiel axecutive and Other Executives are provided with frae use of Company maintzined cars. They ara alsa entitled for medieal faciity ta the extent of reimbursemant of

their
31 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Al transactions invalving refated parties arising in the normal caurse of business are conducted at commercial terms and canditians. The related parties camgrise stalf retirement
funds, & o b Trangctions with othar thn thase d these nancia| statements, are follaws:
2022 2021
Balsnces Rupees Rupees
Bravident Fund - autetanding balance 395,690 368,892
Advarce to CEQ - -
395 530 EXTH
Transactians:
idvarcs to CEO
Opening bialanes . -
Paid asuanee during the year 311 -
- 54,443
Refund advance during the year - (52,443
34 Advarce ts made o CED year whic fwed. The dosing belance i Ml 25 o0 June 30,2022
Contrlsution te statf retirement beneft plans 2314418 2,221,181
Fey management persanel's remuneration and other benefits 0 5140812 8,270,846
Un-audited Audited
312, PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES 02 2021
The follawing infarmarion i based on latest un-audiced financial statements of fund:
Size of the fund - total assets 10,041,442 10,684,160
Percentage of inestment made 60695 873%
Fair value of investmants 6093842 5,206.527

Cost of above investmants

The breakun of fai value of investrmant ks 022 2021 22 021
Percentoge Percentage Rupess Rupess
UBL Wianey Market Fund a58% e 1,741,814 1613272
HEP Finaneial Sectes Income Fund 53224 o0 324323 -
Bank &l Hatals Munafa Fund 000% 38415 - 2,000,000
Imastment i Shares. 18204 30 621 2,108,789 1,583.255
100 00% 100 00% 031802 5206577

313 Imtemational Knitwear Limited Staff Fravident Fund holds the investments which are in sccordance with the provisons of saction 218 of the Companies Act 2017 and the Rulas
farmulated for this purpase.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
JEES SN PO Y 5 . S —
Amount in Rupees
At Amortised Cost FuTPL FTod Other finantlal
liabilities
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equiualent 5 481,510 - . .
|viestments - 17,439,319 20,857,356 -
Long term deposits 2,052,600 - . .
Trade debts - considerzd good 144,689,708 - - -
Loans and advances 1,945,165 -
Other receivables 777361 - - -
Total Financial Assets 154,345,341 17,439,319 20,867,356 -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Lease iabiliy - - - 1,156,720
MTF salary and wages(Covid-1) labilities 5,535,675 -
Shrt term finance under mark-up amangement 152,477,501 -
Creditors, acerued and other payables - 111162376
Total Finandial Liabilities 158,013,176 - - 112,318,105
— S 1110 [ —
At Amortised Cost FVTPL FTod Other finncial
liabdlities

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equiualent 577,801 -
Ivestments - 16,781,236 16,978,356
Long term deposits 2,052,600 - -
Trade debts - considerad good 47,984,608 - - -
Loans and advances 1,577,165 -
Qther recaivables 970,078 - - -
Tatal Financial Assets 53,172,343 16,781,296 16,978,356
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Lease liahility - 2071852
HITF salary and wages(Covid-19) labillties 16,507,024 -
Shart term finance under mark-up amangement 59,761,306 -
Creditors, acerued and other payables - - 102,491 648
Total Financial Liabilities 76,368,420 - - 104,563,500
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Campany have averall ibility for the establ and ouersight of Company's risk management framewurk. The Baard is alsa

respunsible for developing and menitoring the Company's risk management policies

The Company's actvities expose It to 3 variety of liquidity risk, credit ik, and. market risk (including currency isk, Inserast rate risk and price risk]. Company's averalls
tisk managerment polcy focuses an the unpredictability of Fnancial markets and seeks to miniize potential sdverse efects on the Company's finandial performance.

Credit Risk
Credit risk reprasents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause 2 financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 2n obligation. The Company's

crecit rlk Is primarily attributable to ts trade debts and balances at binks. Loca crecit ssles are essentizly to fhazr. Racelvabla from export sales are secured against
letter of credit. The eredt isk on liquid funds is limited because counter parties are banles with reasenabiy high credit ratings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

0 Esposureto ereditrisk

offinaneis! i it eigosure, aedltishat el
Nate m o
Rupees Fupees.
Financial ssets:
Trode detts 134685705
L 0 sdances 11,628349
e receatles 0,573,404
Cashandbank 6481510 10T
M 1908308
The-tade debesane e fom foreign and ! custenners fo gt e ocal sl respectively, Majorty of the wade debts fom eters of credit
he e qusly o cal an Toreg customrs, aing el Al s, st e and fhar s, Fa bk bl Bnancal susuns wich o el s re st
et s placed vith banks having 2000 creditratigs. L sgainstthei 7 balinces
The:bank balances shong with <redit ratings are ahulated bekow:
Nate wn o
Bank Nama. Crodit Ratig, Rupees Fupees
ank A+Hakif rited =0 6,466,478 L6335
Habib B Limites a1 14532 14532
581510 18781
The Company o e los A de et 54 an o equsl ta Ftime ECL oo e simpllied approcch loca! 2 prevision
Pt b etk e he it £ 2t o 4 oo el o, 37 a1t e e th s gl e o o
4 of bt et el s e Thee inantial asset o b i default when
Inteenalor e t 1 bssguently frequred
4t sk ity hen 0 fastars alfet the o of coutes partes whose apregeted et posure s sineant inrelaon o the Comeany’s otsl edt
e, The Campans fancl s e b ot ané BB a Tt b h i 1wty s thrsy gatng any Ao conenrsron 1o Thaeers he
itisnot fn of recit ik,
T2 MarketRisk
Mk isk s e sk thatthe fai value o the fulure cash s f a inancilistrument mar luctuate 2 a resultof i b interet ratesor the dee
i of e 60 1 1 1T, (g i mar et e s S e e, s s deand of st and ity i th ket
Marke i i yris, profit et iskand other pr
W cumency sk
Cunenprisisthe ik that he ol vahue o e cash flaws . Financ wil gt bec Corrency sk arses iy from future cammergal

Financfal zssets Indude Rs. 34,681,323 {2001 : Rs. L18LTE72] which are subject to aurnency ik
Sensaluiy aralysls
The 10 percent sirengthening / webening o Pak fupaz against LSD at June 30, i 3468132 {2021: R 1291 This enelis
assumes that ol cbher variabis remain comstant

li} Interestraterisk
st e isk represents the rs that are fr v o flows of 3 Hhnd il fuczuate s n masket inerest rates. The Compiany his no ang term inferest
bearing financial assets and inbies whose fair valus er future: cash Mlows wil fluctuate because of changes In market nterest rates
Homeser, Cempany i pesses sharl term lnterest bearkg, francal Kabltes which clules R 76,531,144 3021: . 75,368,421] which are subject o ierest ate risk. Applcabie interast e fur
Finanial nstruments kave been inlicedl T respective otes

Fait valus seeitivty saslyss for fived rateinsiruments

The:Company doss ot azcount fr amy Feed rte fnancil assets and labines 2t falr vaus through of praft o s Therefare, a change in nteres rate atthe reparting date waul ot afect the
stalernent of ol arloss

Cash o sty aadysis for arlble rate estruments
frge of L0t s 00K S0 s el s s i e wad st g s nd ek . 7 el G2 s 063 e

Thisanah corstant, orvthe same besis 3 pravicas year
[l othar price rik
the risk that future cash flaws of 3 of, prices cther than thuse ik
gk, wdizcher thase oh Ay factors specte i s,
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B3 Liguidty Risk

Liguiity i 5 the rick that the Company sl enccunter dificty n meating obizations aseodited with firancial libiifes. The Company manages Nukdty ik by waintalning suffdnt cash and cash
equivalents. The following are the rontractusl matunties of financal assets and fancel iabiibes:

INTEREST{MARA-UP BEARING T THOH-ANTEREST]MARK-UP BEARING.
mm Wiaturity up to one | Maturity aftes one bt Miaturity up to one | Maturity after one el Total
% year year ear ear
hugess
Finandial assats:
Long term degasits 26160 26180 21052600
Investments 1439318 1867356 BIGETS BHGEH
Trade debits 144875 144688705 14588705
Other recshablzs 15740 L6700 963404
Cashand barkbalances 550 575 TS5 4 1075% [3:he 6783175 k) kel 6881510
6783175 6.783,175 171084183 2819956 194814719 201,603,894

Financial iabilities:
Longter Ity ageingt 3 year KIBOR+ 25% SlL 541288 11528 115,78
assels subjet fo finance
Sottemte e VSR
et r?-wf(l:ep * 1524751 15477500 samsa
Crediors, accrued and ather payables HLIRLEE L6136 1116037
Untlaimed diidend 1302391 13031 1313

1§ 2 15 12974367 1297761 266,608,997
Sensifhity 20 146,202,767 {342,288 145,845,055 38318597 22918955 51838953 (85.005,103i
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0
INTEREST/MARK.UP BEARING NON-INTEREST/MARK-LP BEARING
Effective rate of
hm%}hm Iaturityupta one | Maturity attes ane il Matarityupto one | Matuilty ahtes one il Total
% year ear year ear
Buges
Financial assets)
Lang tanm depasits 2052600 102600 1,052,800
Lang tarm Frsestments 16,181.2% 16,9735 31,760,652 31,360,482
Trade debts 47934308 47594608 47,994,508
Ctterreceliables 53608 16,536,086 153608
Cash and biank bekences 550% 183190 135150 &,988 45589 1978
133130 183150 91,357,980 13,031,856 110389,83% 11231838
Finanial Eabiies:
Long term liatiity againgt 1 year IBORs 254 s 118,087 1833401 153340
assets subject tofinance
3HManths KIBOR
fir
.
peTn A 275138 6,38 761356
Creditars, acerued andl other paybles 1ETEL 1918781 10577811
Undlsimes diidend 1817933 181788 131793
£0,233783 1,155,087 6133450 103,695,744 103,685,744 165,090604
Sensitiity gap 58,306 881 1,156,067 59,462,960 12,337,765 19031956 £694,191 52,168,173
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Capital Risk Management

The objective of the Campany when managing capital, Le., its shareholders' equity, is to safeguard 1ts abllity to continue a5 a going concem so that 1t can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits tor other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of
its businesses,

The capital structure of the Company is equity based, It has financed all it projects and business expansions through equity financing and never resorted on debt
financing. Howsver, the Company has availed short-tarm barrowing for working capital purposes only.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fairvalue is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderty transaction in the principal {or most adventagesus) market
at the measurzment date under current market conditions {T.e. an exit price] regardless of whether that price is directly chservable or estimated wsing another
valuation technique.

A at June 30, 2022, 2ll financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amartised cost except far investment in mutual funds and equity securities which are
carrizd at their fair values,

Faif value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to inftial recognition at fair velue, grouped into Levels 1103
besed on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 Quated prices {unadjustad] in active markets for identical assets or |iabilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within lavel 1 that are observable for the 2sset or liability, efther directly (that s, as prices| or indfirectly (that
s, derived fram prices)

Level3  Inputs for the asset or liabil ity that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs]

The Company recognises transfers betvieen levels of the fair velue hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has oocurred. The

Company's poicy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitaring of the following factors:

« changes in market and trading activity {e.g. significant increases | decreases in activity)

« changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / casing to be observable in the market]

There were no transfars between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. The valuation techniques used are as follows:

Level 1: Quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair walue of financial instrumants traded in active markets is based an Nat Asset Valuas (NAVs| of the units of the mutual funds and share prices for equity

securifies at the reporting date. & market is regarded 25 active when it is a market in which transactions for the 2sset or lisbity tke place with sufficient

fraquency and velume ta provide pricing information on an on going basis,

The following table analyses within the fair valus hierarchy of the Company's financial ascets [by ¢lass] measured at fair value at June 30, 2002

2022
Financial Assets Lewel1 Level2 Level3 Total
Financi: Fair Value through profit and loss. 38,306,675 - - 38,306,675
w1
Financial Assats Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Financial Investments: Fair Value thraugh prafit and loss 33,760,652 - - 33,760,652
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed capacity {Pes ) 1,300,000 1,300,000
Actual production {Pes.) 415,543 750,692

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the testile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on variaus fectars such as count of yam
spun, raw material used, etc.

Reasons far shortfall
The short fall i actual production during the year when compared with capacity s malnly on account of:
The actual productian is planned to meet the internal demand and ordersin hand.

The spread of Covid=18 36 a pandenic and consequently imposition of lack down by Federal and Provincial Gouernmments of Pakistan has effected the production
and sale volunes of the Company due ta clocure of plant during the lock dawn period.

NUMBER OF EMPLOVEES 2022 2021
Nurber of employees a5 on the date of financial statements: 270 243
Factory employees 131 153
- Other employees 129 140
Aversge number of employees during the year: 275 284
Factory employees 1L 144
Other emplayees 134 140
DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE.

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorized for issue on September 30 2022,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Beard of Directors in their meeting held an September 30, 2022 has proposed a finzl cash dividend of Rs, 0.75 per share amaunting t Rs, 7,256,250, (2021:
Hil)- The appraval of the sharehalcers of the Campany shall be ohtalned at the upcoming Annual General IMeeting for the year ended lune 30, 2022. The financial
slatements for the year ended lune 30, 2022 da ot include the effect of the praposed final cash dividend.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation and comparison. However na significant
redlassification has heen made during the year

FIGURES

Figures have ben rouned off 1o the nearest of rugee.

e 'Qu.\% }”—’ﬁfm

WASEEM SHAFI| INAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director ] CFO
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

| # of shareholders |

Shareholdings'Slab

| Total Shares Held |

263 1 To 100 7,534
225 101 To 500 59,553
621 501 To 1000 350,828
92 1001 To 5000 215,257
22 5001 To 10000 162,972
11 10001 To 15000 135,235
7 15001 To 20000 118,136
11 20001 To 25000 243,119
1 25001 To 30000 29,000
1 35001 To 40000 39,468
2 40001 To 45000 87,500
2 45001 To 50000 98,218
1 50001 To 55000 53,750
1 60001 To 65000 63,531
2 85001 To 90000 173,800
1 100001 To 105000 100,382
1 130001 To 135000 132,225
1 155001 To 160000 158,500
1 200001 To 205000 201,158
1 205001 To 210000 210,000
1 365001 To 370000 368,571
1 425001 To 430000 430,000
2 580001 To 585000 1,169,982
1 625001 To 630000 626,111
1 665001 To 670000 666,484
1 825001 To 830000 825,800
1 830001 To 835000 832,153
1 980001 To 985000 981,934
1 1130001 To 1135000 1,133,699
1277 9,675,000
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Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
[WASEEM SHAFI 2 43,233 045
NAEENM SHAFI 6 845,044 873
JAVED KHAN 2 8,083 0.08
HUMAIRA SHAFI 4 1,070,242 11.06
BUSHRA SHAFI 2 5,870 0.06
ARSHAD AHMED 1 500 0.01
MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1 1,500 002
IMUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 16,125 017
SALEHA MAJID 1 750 0.01
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties -
NIT & ICP -
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions. 1 67 000
Insurance Companies 1 158,500 164
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2 1,042,153 10.77
General Public
3. Local 1,244 6,444,803 66.61
b. Foreign 3 2,500 0.03
Foreign Campanies - -
Others 6 35,534 0.37
Totals 1,277 9,675,000 100,00
HUMAIRA SHAFI 1,070,242 11.06
MUNIS ABDULLA 1,133,699 172
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

S.No,
Folio # Mame of sharehalder Number of shares  Per %
Diracts d thaly childran
1 1 WASEEM SHAFI 30,468 041
2 3v2s WASEEM SHAFI 3,765 004
3 2z NAEEM SHAFI 6772 007
4 520 MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1722 002
s 041 MNAEEM AHMED SHAFI 750 aoL
6 059 MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,000 001
7 O01626-52175  NAEER AHMED SHAFI 9000 009
8 03277-44658  MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 825,800 854
9 28982 JAVED KHAN 1,500 o002
10 10629-132285 JAVED KHAN 6,589 007
11 19 HUMAIRA SHAFI 23,277 024
12 2510 HUMAIRA SHAFI 63531 066
13 03277-97487 HUMAIRA SHAFI 981,934 1015
14 20 BUSHRA SHAFI 3,870 0.04
15 113687-19144  BUSHRA SHAFI 2000  oo2
16 3067 ARSHAD AHMED s00 001
17 2058 MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1,500 on2
18 2911 MUHAMMAD SHAFI 16,125 017
13 1070 HUMAIRA SHAFI 1500 002
20 3057 SALEHA MAJID 750 001
20 1,391,353 20.58
Assacisted companies, undertakings snd related parties
Nil
o -
NT&Ice
Nil
o - -
Banks Financial Institutions, Non Banking i
1 03883 28 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 67 000
i 67 0.0
Insurance Companics
1 02139-29 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 1.64
i 158,500 164
Medarabas and Mutual Funds
1 02113-21 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 210,000 217
2 03277-1651  FIRST UDL MODARABA 832,153 860
2 1,042,153 1077
i
1 03277-107401  MUHAMMAD WASEEM ASLAM 1000 001
2 03277-114373  MUDASSAR ZULFIDAR 500 001
3 03277-110031 MUHAMMAD NADEENM 1,000 001
3 2,500 0.03
Faraign Campaniss
Nil -
) - -
2976 THE COMPANY SECRETARY 472 000
02113-3611  First UDL Modaraba Staff Provident Fund 3750 004
0327776335 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSIGN FUND 10893 011
03277-82127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 382 a0
04341-3265 RAQ SYSTEMS (PVT.) LTD. 19,500 0.20
05728-24 STOCK STREET (PRIVATE) LIMITED 537 ool
6 35534 0.37
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Consent Required

Far Annual Reports through e-mail

Dear Shareholder(s)

The securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP] through its Notification (SRO 787(1) 2014) dated 8
September 2014 has allowed the circulation of Company’s annual balance sheet and profit and loss account,
auditor's report and directors’ report etc. {Audited Annual Financial Statements) to shareholders along with

notice of Annual General Meeting {AGM) through e-mail.

Therefore, if you wish to receive company’s (Audited Annual Financial Statements) along with notice of
{AGM) via - email, you are requested to provide this letter duly filled and signed to us or our Share Registrar

at their below address:

E— MAIL ADDRESS:

CNIC NUMBER:

FOLIO / CDS ACCOUNT #

M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

€DC House, 99-B, Block ‘B, S.M.CH.S,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdesrsl.com/website: www.cdesrsl.ocom

Yours sincerely
Far International Knitwear Limited

- Mf‘d’r“\rﬂv-
N T o
JAVED KHAN
Director/ CFO

SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:

Subject: Bank account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.

Dear Sir,

I, Mr./Mrs./Ms

$/0./D/O,W/0

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the

below mentioned bank account.

{i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No,/CDC Participants 1D A/C No,

CNIC No. **

Passport No. (in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

{ii} Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name

Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Notes:

‘The Shareholders having pwsical shares have 1o adgress the Company Secretary KL on the adgress gven below:

The Company Secretary
International Knirwear Limited
FRRLSITE

and Shareholders having their s with €0C f—

“**plesse atach attested phatocepy of the CNIC,
“**plesse stach attested phataespy of the Passpoct.

information to ralavant Member Stack Exchange.
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<% Inrernational Knitwear Limited

FORM OF PROXY
32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Twe son/danghter/wife/usbandof — Sharcholder of
International Knitwear Limited, holding_______ ordinary shares herehy appoint
whoismy______ [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of , (holding

ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. —— j[required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Anmual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2022 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2021,
Falio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. 1D No. Sub-Account No. Shares held

Signature over
Revenue Stamp

Witness | ‘Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifaproxyis granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. Theinstrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting,
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[nternattonal Knitwear Limited
F-2A/L, S.\.TE., Korachi-757 30 Pakistan
Phones: 32571463, 32574302-04
Fax; (021] 32564414
‘Web : www.intemationalknitwear.com



